1980

Richard B, Jensen as State Auditor of the State of Utah v. William K, Dinehart, as the Director of the Division of State Lands of the State of Utah : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

Plaintiff brought this action for a declaratory judgment to clarify a long-standing dispute^{1/} between state officials concerning the disposition of mineral proceeds from state school lands. The specific question is whether either the Utah Enabling Act, 28 Stat. 107, or the Act of January 25, 1927, 44 Stat. 1026, 43 U.S.C. §870, requires mineral proceeds to be deposited in the permanent school fund, and only the interest earned thereon used to support the public schools, or whether those Acts authorize the State of Utah to decide whether such mineral proceeds are to be placed in the permanent school fund or in the uniform school fund (the operating fund used to meet current obligations).

1. See Appendix C, page 26, for a summary of past administrative practices.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The trial court held that mineral proceeds derived from school trust lands must be deposited in the permanent school fund, and, in so doing, invalidated sub silentio Article X, Section 3, of the Utah Constitution.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiff asks this Court to reverse the judgment of the lower court, and to hold that Article X, Section 3, of the Utah Constitution is consistent with the Utah Enabling Act, 28 Stat. 107, and the Act of January 25, 1927, 44 Stat. 1026, 43 U.S.C. §870.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The facts are not in dispute. They consist essentially of the legislative history of school land grants from the United States to the State of Utah, and are more logically presented as part of the Argument section of this Brief.

For present purposes, it is sufficient to note that the Utah Enabling Act requires that all proceeds derived from the sale of school trust lands must be deposited in a permanent school trust fund, and the income derived therefrom shall be used exclusively for the support of Utah's public schools. The "income" thus realized is appropriated by the Legislature for expenditure, and it transferred from the permanent fund to the uniform school fund, which is the operating account from which funds are drawn to support the public schools.

The income derived from the permanent school fund is not sufficient to provide all of the state support for public schools, and the Legislature also appropriates substantial amounts from the State's general fund to the uniform school fund.

Where the State still owns school trust lands, the lands themselves are considered to be, for all practical purposes, part of the permanent school trust, and the "income" from such lands (e.g., lease rentals from livestock grazing) is similar in nature to the "income" realized on the permanent school fund, and is deposited in the uniform school fund and used for current expenditures to support the public schools.

The present dispute is whether mineral proceeds from school lands are essentially in the nature of proceeds derived from the sale of school trust lands, and therefore must be deposited in the permanent school fund, or whether mineral proceeds are essentially in the nature of rental income from school trust lands, and therefore must be deposited in the uniform school fund. Resolution of the issue hinges on the interpretation to be given to the Utah Enabling Act and the Act of January 25, 1927, both supra, and, in light of such interpretation, a determination as to whether Article X, Section 3, of the Utah Constitution is valid. That provision of the Utah Constitution requires that all mineral proceeds from school trust lands be deposited in the uniform school fund for current use.^{2/}

Plaintiff, as the Utah State Auditor, has determined by audit that Defendant Division of State Lands had deposited, as of June 30,

2. The implementing statute is Section 65-1-64, Utah Code Annotated (Vol. 7A, 2d Rep.).

1978, the sum of \$14,814,150.00 in the permanent school fund, rather than the uniform school fund, in violation of Article X, Section 3, of the Utah Constitution. Similarly, there are eleven other permanent trust funds (e.g., University of Utah, Utah State University, State Industrial School, School for the Deaf, School for the Blind, etc.), wherein the Defendant has deposited, as of June 30, 1978, a cumulative total of \$1,566,861.00, rather than in the respective operating accounts for those institutions, as required by law.

ARGUMENT

All that is necessary to dispose of this case is to examine the basic school land grant under the Utah Enabling Act of 1894 and the mineral grant authorized by the Act of January 25, 1927. Those two statutes will now be reviewed, and it will be seen that Article X, Section 3, of the Utah Constitution is in all respects in compliance with the conditions and provisions contained within those federal statutes.

I. The School Land Grant under the Utah Enabling Act did not Include Known Minerals

A. Preface

The most significant observation to be made from the discussion that follows is that Congress did not intend to grant minerals to Utah under the Utah Enabling Act, and consequently there was no congressional intent at all with respect to any mineral proceeds. Obviously, Utah could not realize mineral proceeds from minerals that were not granted.

3. See Appendix B, page 25, for an identification of the funds, accounts and amounts in controversy.

It was conceptually possible for Utah to receive title to school lands in place under the 1894 Act at a time when there was no known mineral value, and then to have a subsequent discovery of valuable minerals in such lands. In such a case Utah would not be divested of the mineral estate by virtue of the subsequent mineral discovery, but there certainly is no implication of any congressional intent with respect to the use and disposition of proceeds realized from the lease of such subsequently discovered minerals.

B. Utah Enabling Act of 1894: Congressional Conditions for Creation of the Public Trust for Public Schools

Federal land grants to the States for the support of the common schools create a solemn public trust of critical importance for the support of public schools. This trust is in the nature of a bilateral compact whereby Utah, as a sovereign State admitted into the Union on an equal footing with the Original States, agreed not to tax federal lands within Utah, and whereby the United States, for its part, granted four sections of federal lands within each township to Utah for the aid and support of the public schools, thus compensating Utah for the limited and reduced property tax base available to raise revenues to support governmental functions (specifically, the operation and maintenance of the public school system). The United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit recently summarized the legal nature and implications of school land grants to the States:

The historical background leading to Congressional enactment of the state school land grant statutes should aid in lending perspective to the legislative intent.

There were no federal lands within the borders of the original thirteen states when they adopted and ratified the United States Constitution. Thus, virtually all of the lands within their borders were subject to taxation, including taxation necessary for the maintenance of their public school systems. When other states were subsequently admitted into the Union, their territorial confines were "carved" from federal territories. The "public lands" owned and reserved by the United States within those territorial confines were not subject to taxation. This reservation by the United States created a serious impediment to the "public land" states in relation to an adequate property tax base necessary to permit these states to operate and maintain essential governmental services, including the public school systems. It was in recognition thereof, i.e., in order to "equalize" the status of the newly admitted states with that of the original thirteen states, that the Congress enacted the federal land grant statutes. The specific purpose was to create a binding permanent trust which would generate financial aid to support the public school systems of the "public land" states. The nature of the Congressional land grant program was "bilateral" in effect. It constituted a solemn immunity from taxation of federal lands reserved or retained in ownership by the United States within the territorial boundaries of the newly admitted states in return for the acceptance by the states of the lands granted, to be held and administered by the states under trust covenants for the perpetual benefit of the public school systems.

Large quantities of the public domain have been granted by the Congress to the various states either for general or specific purposes. Many of these grants are unrestricted. None, to our knowledge, involve the trust covenants attendant with the state school land grant statutes. A grant by Congress of land to a state for the benefit of the common schools is an absolute grant, vesting title for a specific purpose. *Alabama v. Schmidt*, 232 U.S. 168 (1914). The school land grant and its acceptance by the state constitutes a solemn compact

between the United States and the state for the benefit of the state's public school system. *State of Nebraska v. Platte Valley Power and Irr. Dist.* 23 N.W.2d 300 (Neb. 1946), 166 A.L.R. 1196. A state accepting the school land grant must abide its duty as trustee for the benefit of the state's public school system. (*Utah v. Kleppe*, 586 F.2d 756, 758 (1978) (Emphasis added)).

The Utah Enabling Act was passed by Congress as the Act of July 16, 1894, 28 Stat. 107, and was entitled:

An Act To enable the people of Utah to form a constitution and State government, and to be admitted into the Union on an equal footing with the original States.

With respect to the immunity of federal lands from taxation by the State, Section 3 of the Enabling Act authorized a convention to be convened for the purpose of forming a constitution and state government, requiring that:

. . . said convention shall provide, by ordinance irrevocable without the consent of the United States and the people of said State . . . that the people inhabiting said proposed State do agree and declare that they forever disclaim all right and title to the unappropriated public lands lying within the boundaries thereof; and . . . that no taxes shall be imposed by the State on lands or property therein belonging to or which may hereafter be purchased by the United States or reserved for its use . . .

Section 3 of the Enabling Act then proceeded to require the State of Utah, prior to statehood, to adopt an "ordinance irrevocable" for:

. . . the establishment and maintenance of a system of public schools, which shall be open to all the children of said State and free from sectarian control.

Section 6 of the Enabling Act then provided:

That upon the admission of said State into the Union, sections numbered two, sixteen, thirty-two, and thirty-six in every township of said proposed State . . . are hereby granted to said State for the support of common schools.

Section 10 of the Enabling Act then imposed the specific conditions on the use and disposition of the school land grant contained in Section 6:

. . . the proceeds of lands herein granted for educational purposes, except as hereinafter otherwise provided, shall constitute a permanent school fund, the interest of which only shall be expended for the support of said schools . . .

C. Utah Constitution: Acceptance of the Public Trust

Utah accepted the conditions and obligations of the federal grant to create a trust in aid and support of the public schools by providing in Section 3, Article X, of the Utah Constitution that such school lands and all proceeds derived therefrom:

. . . shall be and remain a permanent fund, to be called the State School Fund, the interest of which only shall be expended for the support of the common schools.

Section 7, Article X, of the Utah Constitution further provided that:

All public school funds shall be guaranteed by the State against loss or diversion.

Thus, the public trust for the support of Utah's public school system was created by the grant and attendant conditions established by Congress in the Utah Enabling Act and the acceptance by Utah through the adoption of its Constitution.

D. Known Minerals Not Granted

Generally, school land grants to new States admitted into the Union after 1845 expressly excluded mineral lands (see, e.g., Section 13, Idaho Admission Act of July 3, 1890, 26 Stat. 215, and Wyoming Act of Admission of July 10, 1890, 26 Stat. 223). However, the Utah Enabling Act, as has been seen, did not expressly include or exclude mineral lands from the grants to the State. Any uncertainty about the matter was resolved in United States v. Sweet, 245 U.S. 563 (1918), wherein the United States Supreme Court specifically held that Congress did not intend to grant to Utah school sections known to be mineral in character as of the date title would have passed to the State by the terms of the grant in the Utah Enabling Act.

E. Summary

To keep the matter in perspective, it must be emphasized that the parties are not in disagreement with respect to the importance, solemnity, or bilateral nature of school land grants to the States. Utah must honor the conditions and restrictions imposed upon the school trust by the United States and accepted by the State. Lassen v. Arizona, 385 U.S. 458 (1967); Utah v. Kleppe, 586 F.2d 756 (1978).

The point of dispute is whether there is any provision in the Utah Enabling Act evidencing a congressional intent to require mineral proceeds to be deposited in a permanent fund. The face of the Enabling Act makes clear there is no such requirement expressly

set forth in the Act. And United States v. Sweet, supra, makes clear that there is no such requirement to be implied from the Act.

It was not until 1927 that Congress put its mind to the question of granting minerals to the States as part of the school land grant programs, and to a consideration of appropriate safeguards attendant to such mineral grants. And that is the matter now to be considered.

II. The Mineral Grant under the Act of January 25, 1927, Authorized the States to Decide Whether Mineral Proceeds should be Deposited in Permanent or Operating School Trust Accounts

A. Provisions of the Act of January 25, 1927

The scope of the statehood school land grant with respect to numbered school sections in place was extended to expressly include sections which were mineral in character by the Act of January 25, 1927, 44 Stat. 1026, 43 U.S.C. §870. In so doing, Congress expressly set forth the conditions that were to be applicable to the mineral grant and to the proceeds derived therefrom. The relevant language of the grant provided that:

. . . the several grants to the States of numbered sections in place for the support or aid of common or public schools be, and they are hereby, extended to embrace numbered school sections mineral in character.

Subsection (b), 43 U.S.C. §870(b), then provided:

(b) That the additional grant made by this act is upon the express condition that all sales, grants, deeds, or patents for any of the lands so granted shall be subject to and contain a reservation to the State of the coal and other minerals in the lands so sold, granted, deeded or patented, together with the right to prospect for, mine, and remove the same. The coal and other mineral deposits in such lands shall be subject to lease by the State as

the Legislature may direct, the proceeds of rentals and royalties therefrom to be utilized for the support or in aid of the common public schools; Provided, that any lands or minerals disposed of contrary to the provisions of this act shall be forfeited to the United States by appropriate proceedings instituted by the Attorney General for that purpose in the United States district court of the district in which the property or some part thereof is located. (Emphasis added).

Congress clearly did not require mineral proceeds to be placed in any permanent fund, but required merely that "the proceeds of rentals and royalties therefrom" be utilized "for the support or in aid of the common public schools." This provision related directly to the "additional grant" of minerals, and left to the States the discretion as to whether proceeds from mineral leases should be deposited in permanent funds or in operating funds. It didn't matter to Congress where the funds were deposited, so long as they were used exclusively for the support of the public schools.

With respect to the mineral grant, Congress required only that:

1. The States reserve the mineral estate in school trust lands if and when the surface estate is sold;
2. The mineral estate be leased in the manner, and subject to the terms and conditions, provided for by the state legislature; and
3. The proceeds from mineral leases be used exclusively for the support of the common public schools.

As the next section of this Brief will demonstrate, Utah complied with all of these conditions and requirements of the grant of minerals in school trust lands.

B. Utah Compliance with the Act of January 25, 1927

1. Reservation of Minerals

The federal requirement that all coal and other minerals in school lands be reserved is satisfied by Section 65-1-15, Utah Code Annotated (2d. Rep. Vol. 7A), which provides in pertinent part that:

All coal and other mineral deposited in lands belonging to the state of Utah are hereby reserved to the state. Such deposits are reserved from sale, except on a rental and royalty basis as provided by law, and the purchaser of any lands belonging to the state shall acquire no right, title or interest in or to such deposit; but the rights of such purchaser shall be subject to the reservation of all coal and other mineral deposits, and to the conditions and limitations prescribed by law providing for the state and persons authorized by it to prospect or mine, and to remove such deposits, and to occupy and use so much of the surface of said lands as may be required for all purposes reasonably incident to the mining and removal of such deposits therefrom . . .

2. Provisions for Leasing Minerals

The federal requirement that the state legislatures provide terms and procedures for leasing minerals in school lands is satisfied by a comprehensive leasing system set forth in several statutes, including Sections 65-1-18, 65-1-22, 65-1-23, 65-1-45, 65-1-46, and 65-1-47, Utah Code Annotated (Vol. 7A, 2d Rep.). The content of these statutes is not a matter of present interest or relevance. The salient and uncontested fact is that the Utah Legislature has adequately provided for the lease of minerals in school trust lands in full compliance with the requirement of the 1927 Act.

3. Use of Mineral Proceeds for Support of the Public Schools

The federal requirement that revenues derived from the lease of minerals in school trust lands be used exclusively for the support of the common schools is satisfied by Article X, Section 3, of the Utah Constitution, as amended in 1939, which provides:

The proceeds of the sales of all lands that have been or may hereafter be granted by the United States to this state, for the support of the common schools, and five percentum of the net proceeds of the sales of United States public lands lying within the states and sold by the United States subsequent to the admission of this state into the Union, shall be and remain a permanent fund, to be called the State School Fund, the interest of which only, shall be expended for the support of the common schools. The interest on the State School Fund, the proceeds of all property that may accrue to the state by the escheat or forfeiture, all unclaimed shares and dividends of any corporation incorporated under the laws of this state, the proceeds of the sales of timber, and the proceeds of the sale or other disposition of minerals or other property from school and state lands, other than those granted for specific purposes, shall, with such other revenues as the Legislature may from time to time allot thereto, constitute a fund to be known as the Uniform School Fund, which Uniform School Fund shall be maintained and used for the support of the common and public schools of the state and apportioned in such manner as the Legislature shall provide. (Emphasis added).

It is thus clear beyond controversy that all proceeds from the "sale or other disposition of minerals" from "school" lands shall be deposited in the uniform school fund and "used for the support of the common and public schools of the state." Thus, the third and final requirement of the 1927 Act is satisfied. As an aside, it might be noted that Article X, Section 3, quoted above, is broad

enough to permit a "sale or other disposition" of minerals, but the relevant state statutes prohibit sales and conveyances of mine and authorize leases only, as shown in Section II.B.1 of this Brief supra at page 12.

III. Other Legal and Practical Considerations Support Deposit of Revenues from Mineral Leases in Uniform School Fund

A. Congressional Acquiescence in the 1939 Amendment to Article X

Under the 1927 grant of minerals in school lands, Congress expressly declared that:

. . . any lands or minerals disposed of contrary to the provisions of this Act shall be forfeited to the United States by appropriate proceedings instituted by the Attorney General for that purpose in the United States district court for the district in which the property or some part thereof is located. (43 U.S.C. §870(b)).

The statutory mandate quoted above is similar to the judicial admonition given in Lassen v. Arizona, 385 U.S. 458 (1962), wherein the Supreme Court said that the United States Attorney General was obligated "to maintain whatever proceedings may be necessary" to protect the integrity of the school trust grant to Arizona.

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