1980

# Richard B, Jensen as State Auditor of the State of Utah v. William K, Dinehart, as the Director of the Division of State Lands of the State of Utah : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

#### ARGUMENT

#### POINT I

THE UNITED STATES CONGRESS ADOPTED THE MINERAL LEASING ACT OF 1927 TO ALLEVIATE CONFUSION OVER MINERAL GRANTS IN STATE ENABLING ACTS AND TO RE-AFFIRM ITS INTENTION THAT MINERAL PROCEEDS FROM SCHOOL SECTION LANDS BE PLACED IN PERMANENT SCHOOL FUNDS.

Shortly after the territory of Utah became a State on January 4, 1896, decisions by the United States Supreme Court clouded the title of property granted in trust for State school section lands and the disposition of mineral royalties. In the Utah Enabling Act, no specific reservation was made of the minerals by the United States Congress. (Appellant, in fact, admits that it was possible Utah received title to some minerals under the Enabling Act. Appellant's Brief, Pages 19, 20.) The decisions of the Supreme Court basically undid the work of Congress by claiming that lands known to be valuable for minerals were not included in the grants made to the States, since no mention was made of the reserved minerals. See, generally, United States

v. Sweet, 245 U.S. 563, 38 S.Ct. 193, 62 L.Ed.473 (1918), wherein the United States Supreme Court held that lands known to be valuable for coal mineral at the date title would vest, were not intended by Congress to be included in the grant of school section lands in Utah's Enabling Act. The words "lands known to be valuable for mineral" are words of art and have a specific meaning, namely, (1) location (2) filing claim (3) annual assessment work and that if a claim is staked out and assessment work is done, then the land is known to be valuable for mineral. There is no question that title to the school section lands passed to the State and there is no dispute that those minerals which were not "known to be valuable for mineral," as those terms are used in the mining laws, passed to the State of Utah at statehood (or at the official survey date a few years thereafter). In fact, Utah has "presumptive title" to mineral royalties under the Enabling Act if not known to be mineral at the time of the official government survey (said survey being circa 1902). See generally Work v. Braffet, 276 U.S. 560, 48 S.Ct. 363, 72 L.Ed. 700 (1928). See, also, Deffebach v. Hawke, 115 U.S. 392, 6 S.Ct. 95, 29 L.Ed. 423 (1888).

Following the decision of the U. S. Supreme Court in Sweet, supra, it appeared as if a great injustice was placed upon the citizens of the State of Utah who in good faith made purchases of State school section lands. The State would transfer its title in good faith. In later years, subsequent development of the surrounding territory would

show promise of being mineral in character, and this often, after extensive and expensive exploration work, would indicate the presence of a mineral. From this developed the doctrine of "geological inference," by which, if it could be reasonably inferred that somewhere beneath the surface there was a mineral in any of these lands, the title was clouded because it may have been known to be valuable at the date of statehood.

In 1926, the United States Congress, as a result of the confusion and uncertainty that had been created regarding the titles to so many State school section lands in Utah and in other public land States, considered the adoption of certain mineral leasing acts upon which appellant relies to demonstrate--incorrectly--that the Utah Enabling Act in 1894 did not contemplate placing mineral royalties from State school section lands in a permanent trust fund for the support of the common schools. Appellant alleged in his Complaint that the United States Congress had consented to placing proceeds from the sale of mineral royalties on land elsewhere than in the permanent school fund by enactment of various and sundry acts of Congress. In particular, appellant relies heavily upon an Act of Congress approved January 25, 1927, (44 Stat. 1026).

A closer examination of the legislative history surrounding the adoption of the Act of Congress of 1927 discloses that the United States



Congress had every intention of maintaining the requirement that the proceeds from the disposition of State school section lands and their mineral royalties be placed in permanent funds for the benefit of the common schools. Some States were required by their Enabling Acts to place mineral proceeds in permanent funds, while others, like Utah's Act, were simply silent as to the disposition of mineral royalties. But Congress clearly intended that the newly adopted Mineral Leasing Act of 1927 relate back to the respective Enabling Acts on an equal and uniform basis and said Act would have a similar impact on all States alike. In the United States Congressional Record, Vol. 68, Part 2, of the 69th Congress, Second Session, January 17, 1927, is recorded the following comments regarding the Senate Bill 564 (Act of Congress, January 25, 1927, 44 Stat. 1026), which had just been passed. The comments attributed to Mr. Colton, the representative from the State of Utah, are as follows:

"The law just passed relinquishes to the various states the title of the United States to all lands designated in the grant, including the mineral therein found in aid of common or public schools... . I want to note also that this bill is a conservation measure; the bill also requires the states to reserve and withhold unto themselves all minerals of whatsoever character in any and all lands which they might transfer or sell, giving to them, however, the right to lease the minerals in the lands and to utilize the proceeds received as royalties or rentals 'for the attainment of the purposes for which the lands were granted as the case may be.'"  
(At page 1817) (Emphasis added.)

\* \* \*

"I think we are especially indebted to him for the proviso retaining in the states the mineral which we hope will build in the future a great school fund."  
(At page 1817)

The Congressional Record of the House also went on to record the comments of Representative Morrow from the State of New Mexico regarding the Senate Bill 564 which had just passed:

"Mr. Speaker, in the passage of Senate Bill 564 introduced in the Senate by Senator Jones of New Mexico and amended in the House, an important step has been accomplished in the securing of title to the school lands which have been granted to twelve of these western states. The placing of the mineral rights in charge of the states will bring to each state an immense school fund if each state will in turn use business judgment.

"The mineral being reserved to the state in the Act just passed for the use of schools is very proper and timely.

"History presents to us examples of the failure of nearly all the states receiving the earlier grants for its public schools to save and invest the revenue in a permanent fund... .

"The securing title by the states to the lands granted in aid of the public schools and the lands granted to state institutions has been a long struggle for the western states admitted into the union since the year 1845.

"By the passage of this Act, the State of New Mexico should secure title in fee to 8,711,952 acres of land; the twelve states involved, a total of 54,587,647 acres. What a vast heritage this will be for our public schools; also, what an immense burden in taxation will be lifted from the taxpayer if this vast estate is handled honestly, faithfully, and economically.



"It is up to the states to see that their future state officers in charge of this vast empire of wealth possess the ability, integrity and judgment to carry forward in the manner indicated in the Act of Congress. Some will fail unless future state legislation is so enacted as a complete safeguard for the trust that its officers will be required to manage and carry out.

"This land will not be disposed of in a few years; but should be sold so as to create a permanent fund. This fund, if handled properly, will continue to grow and accumulate for a century to come." (At. page 1820) (Emphasis added.)

And further enlightenment that the intention of Congress that the Enabling Acts regarding the disposition of minerals be not altered by the Act of Congress of 1927 is supported by an official House of Representative's Report No. 1617 of the 69th Congress, Second Session, filed with the Committee of the Whole House on the State of Union from the Committee on Public Lands dated December 9th, 1926, by Representative Colton of Utah. This report was to accompany Senate Bill 564 and notes:

"The proposed legislation deals only with those lands which were granted to the states by Congress in their Enabling Acts for the benefit of their common and public schools and other state institutions, which grants comprise but a very small fraction of the entire area in the state

...

"It should also be borne in mind that only the interest from the funds which a state receives from the sale, lease, or rental of these lands, or the minerals therein, can be expended--that is to say, the principal cannot be used. This, for the reason that Congress saw fit in passing the Enabling Acts of the various states provided therein, that the funds

derived from the sale, lease, or rental of these school lands, should be invested to form a principal, permanent fund--the interest only of which might be used for the benefit of the common and public schools or other state institutions as the case may be. Thus, it will seem that the principal can never be depleted or dissipated. It will be noted that, under this plan, it is necessary for a state to accumulate a principal fund of some considerable amount in order to realize sufficient interest to be of benefit to its common school system and to result in the reduction of taxation for school purposes. Having this in mind, your committee fully realizes the difficulties under which these states are forced to labor and, therefore, reach the conclusion that their cause was a meritorious one, and that Congress could well afford to adopt a beneficent attitude toward them in view of the end desire to be accomplished. It also prevents valuable mineral lands from falling into the hands of third parties, thereby insuring the proper return and full measure of support to the particular institution to which the lands were granted.

"Some states have already enacted laws reserving under themselves all minerals found in state lands which are sold. Those that do not have such provisions upon their statute books, of course, must comply with the terms of the act in order to realize its benefits." (At pages 3 and 4)

The above-cited House Committee report, even though suggesting an amendment to the statute not relevant herein, demonstrates that the United States Congress, in adopting the Act of 1927, clearly intended that the mineral proceeds from State school section lands would be treated in exactly the same manner as set forth originally in the respective Enabling Acts of the various public land States affected thereby. In fact, the Act itself, in Chapter 57, subparagraph (b) provides, inter alia:

"The coal and other mineral deposits in such lands shall be subject to lease by the state as the state legislature may direct, the proceeds of rentals and royalties therefrom to be utilized for the support and in the aid of the common or public schools; ... ."  
(Emphasis added.)

The Act of Congress of 1927 further provides, in section two:

"... That nothing herein contained is intended or shall be held or construed to increase, diminish, or affect the rights of states under grants other than for the support of common or public schools by numbered school sections in place, and this act shall not apply to indemnity or lieu selections, or exchanges or the right hereafter to select indemnity for numbered school sections in place lost to the state under the provisions of this or other acts, and all existing laws governing such grants and indemnity or lieu selections and exchanges are hereby continued in full force and effect."  
Act of Congress, January 25th, 1927, 44 Stat. Chapter 57, Pages 1026, 1027. (Emphasis added.)

The above-cited provisions of the statute reinforces the conclusion that Congress intended to remove the confusion regarding the grant of minerals and expected and mandated that the mineral royalties be treated in the same manner as originally contemplated in the Enabling Acts. If the proceeds of the sale of school section lands must go to a permanent fund, then the proceeds of the mineral value must go to the permanent fund. The Utah Constitution of 1896, as originally adopted which was approved by the United States Congress, contained in Art. X, Section 3, the following language:

"The proceeds of all lands that have been or may be granted by the United States to this state for the support of the common schools; the proceeds of all properties that may

accrue to the state by escheat or forfeiture; all un-claimed shares and dividends of any corporation in-corporated under the laws of this state; the proceeds of the sale of timber, minerals or other properties from school and state lands, other than those granted for specific purposes; and the five per centum of the net pro-ceeds of the sales of public lands lying within the state, which shall be sold by the United States, subsequent to the admission of this state into the union, shall be and remain a perpetual fund to be called the state school fund, the interest of which only, together with such other means as the Legislature may provide, shall be distributed among the several school districts according to the school population residing therein." Utah Constitution, Jan. 4th, 1896, Art. X, Section 3. (Emphasis added.)

Art. X, Section 3 of the Utah Constitution, cited above, from the date of the admission of Utah into the union until some forty years later, was recognized by the Legislature and the people of Utah to in-clude as part of land grant trusts for common schools created by Con-gress, the sale and use of minerals, rentals, and royalties from State school section lands, as more fully set forth in paragraph 14(a) of appel-lant's Complaint which this respondent admits and relies upon.

Appellant also relies upon the Mineral Leasing Act (Act of Con-gress, February 25, 1920--41 Stat. 450) of 1920, which does not provide support for appellant's position, nor do the so-called Dawson Acts adopted August 27, 1958, 72 Stat. 928, September 14, 1960--74 Stat. 1027, 43 U.S. Code Ann., Section 852, by their own terms and wording. The over-riding congressional intent in 1927 was to grant the maximum amount of

economic benefit to support public education and common schools by removing the confusion regarding the disposition of minerals.

In conclusion, respondent submits that both classes of minerals ((1) those minerals that were not known to be valuable at statehood which did pass to Utah under the Enabling Act; and (2) those minerals which were granted by the 1927 Mineral Leasing Act) were specifically intended by Congress to be governed by the Utah Enabling Act, which requires that proceeds from the mineral value of the land, be held inviolate in the permanent school fund.

Appellant's arguments regarding the proper interpretation of the Act of Congress of 1927 are without merit in light of: (1) the above-cited Congressional Record and Congressional Reports; (2) the language of the Act of Congress of 1927; and (3) the early Utah Constitution.

## POINT II

"PROCEEDS" FROM PUBLIC SCHOOL LANDS INCLUDE MINERAL SALES AND LEASE REVENUE, MINERAL BONUSES, FEES, AND MINERAL ROYALTIES, ALL OF WHICH ARE WITHIN THE MEANING AND SCOPE OF SECTION 10 OF THE ENABLING ACT.

Section 10 of the Enabling Act (Act of July 16, 1894, Chapter 138, 28 Stat. 107), provides:

"That the proceeds of lands herein granted for educational purposes, except as otherwise provided, shall constitute a permanent school fund, the interest of which only shall be expended for the support of said schools, and such land shall not be subject to preemption, homestead



entry, or any other entry under the land laws of the United States, whether surveyed or unsurveyed, but shall be surveyed for school purposes only." (Emphasis added.)

The Utah Supreme Court in 1959 in Chase v. Morgan, 9 Utah 2d 125, 339 P.2d 1019, held that "minerals in place constitute real estate." The Court stated, at page 129:

"Undetached minerals are part of the earth and, therefore, realty."

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